

**NINETY-FIRST GENERAL ASSEMBLY
2026 REGULAR SESSION
DAILY
HOUSE CLIP SHEET**

March 19, 2026

Clip Sheet Summary

Displays all amendments, fiscal notes, and conference committee reports for previous day.

Bill	Amendment	Action	Sponsor
HF 2739	H-8236	Filed	ZABNER of Johnson
HF 2739	H-8237	Filed	ZABNER of Johnson
HF 2739	H-8238	Filed	ZABNER of Johnson, et al
HF 2739	H-8239	Filed	SRINIVAS of Polk
HF 2739	H-8240	Filed	SRINIVAS of Polk, et al
HF 2739	H-8241	Filed	SRINIVAS of Polk
HF 2739	H-8242	Filed	LUNDGREN of Dubuque
HF 2739	H-8243	Filed	LUNDGREN of Dubuque
SF 378	H-8245	Filed	GOSA of Scott, et al
SF 2186	H-8235	Filed	COMMITTEE ON VETERANS AFFAIRS, et al
SF 2219	H-8246	Filed	COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION, et al

[SF 2422](#) [H-8247](#) Filed

[SF 2448](#) [H-8244](#) Filed

COMMITTEE
ON HEALTH
AND HUMAN
SERVICES, et al

NORDMAN of
Dallas

HOUSE FILE 2739

H-8236

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8233, to House File 2739, as follows:
- 2 1. Page 1, after line 3 by inserting:
- 3 <Section 1. Section 2.40, subsection 1, paragraph a,
- 4 subparagraph (2), Code 2026, is amended to read as follows:
- 5 (2) (a) The member shall pay that portion of the total
- 6 premium for the plan selected on the same basis as paid by the
- 7 largest number of full-time state employees of the executive
- 8 branch, other than employees of the state board of regents,
- 9 that are excluded from collective bargaining as provided in
- 10 chapter 20, except the portion of the total premium paid by
- 11 a member of the general assembly shall be three and one-half
- 12 percent greater than the portion of the premium paid by the
- 13 full-time state employees of the executive branch.
- 14 (b) Commencing with the fiscal year beginning July 1,
- 15 2026, and each fiscal year thereafter, an amount equal to the
- 16 additional three and one-half percent of premiums paid by
- 17 members of the general assembly as described in subparagraph
- 18 division (a) during each fiscal year shall be deposited into
- 19 the medical assistance fund of the department of health and
- 20 human services.>
- 21 2. Page 2, by striking lines 6 through 10.
- 22 3. Page 2, after line 12 by inserting:
- 23 <___. Title page, line 5, after <services,> by inserting
- 24 <modifying health insurance premiums of members of the general
- 25 assembly,>>
- 26 4. Page 2, line 15, by striking <and applicability>
- 27 5. By renumbering as necessary.

By ZABNER of Johnson

H-8236 FILED MARCH 19, 2026

HOUSE FILE 2739

H-8237

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8233, to House File 2739, as follows:
- 2 1. Page 2, after line 3 by inserting:
- 3 <Sec. _____. REQUIRED SALE OF CERTAIN AIRCRAFT USED FOR
- 4 EXECUTIVE TRANSPORT. On or before December 31, 2026, the
- 5 commissioner of public safety shall sell every aircraft that
- 6 has been used for executive transport if the aircraft was
- 7 purchased by the department of public safety using moneys
- 8 from the federal American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, Pub. L.
- 9 No. 117-2. Proceeds from the sale shall be deposited in the
- 10 medical assistance fund of the department of health and human
- 11 services.>
- 12 2. Page 2, by striking lines 6 through 10.
- 13 3. Page 2, after line 12 by inserting:
- 14 <_____. Title page, line 5, after <services,> by inserting
- 15 <requiring the sale of certain aircraft,>>
- 16 4. Page 2, line 15, by striking <and applicability>
- 17 5. By renumbering as necessary.

By ZABNER of Johnson

H-8237 FILED MARCH 19, 2026

HOUSE FILE 2739

H-8238

1 Amend the amendment, H-8233, to House File 2739, as follows:

2 1. Page 1, after line 3 by inserting:

3 <Section 1. NEW SECTION. 135.196 Iowa benefit exchange
4 fund — enhanced premium credits — appropriation.

5 1. As used in this section, *“enhanced premium tax credit”*
6 means the advanced premium tax credit under 26 U.S.C.
7 §36B(3)(A).

8 2. The department and the department of insurance and
9 financial services shall cooperate and develop an internet
10 site to be located on the internet site of the department to
11 effectuate this section.

12 3. An Iowa benefit exchange fund is created in the state
13 treasury under the control of the department. Moneys in the
14 fund are to be used for the sole purpose of providing subsidies
15 to persons whose applications have been approved pursuant to
16 this section. Moneys in the fund are not subject to section
17 8.33. Notwithstanding section 12C.7, subsection 2, interest or
18 earnings on moneys in the fund shall be credited to the fund.

19 4. The purpose of the fund is to provide funding for the
20 establishment of a state-based health insurance subsidy to
21 mitigate the impact of the reduction in the enhanced federal
22 advanced premium tax credits after the 2025 tax year.

23 5. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2026, and ending
24 June 30, 2027, there is appropriated from the general fund of
25 the state to the department to be credited to the Iowa benefit
26 exchange fund, an amount sufficient to implement this section
27 until such time that the enhanced federal advanced premium
28 tax credits are restored to a level equaling or exceeding the
29 amount of the enhanced premium tax credit available to persons
30 during the 2025 tax year.

31 6. Beginning July 1, 2026, in order to qualify for a subsidy
32 to mitigate the impact of the reduction in enhanced federal
33 advanced premium tax credits, a person who is a resident may
34 submit an application to the department in a manner specified
35 by the department. The application shall include identical

1 information submitted by a person as if applying for health
2 insurance coverage under the federal Patient Protection and
3 Affordable Care Act, Pub. L. No. 111-148, including personal
4 information, household income, immigration status, and any
5 current or available health insurance coverage.

6 7. a. For the tax year beginning on or after January 1,
7 2026, but before January 1, 2027, and upon approval of the
8 application by the department, an amount equal to the enhanced
9 premium tax credit the person would have received as if the
10 enhanced premium tax credit did not expire shall be provided to
11 the person to offset the cost of the health insurance coverage.

12 b. The amount provided shall be based upon the calculation
13 for the enhanced premium tax credits during the 2025 tax year.

14 c. The amount provided may be retroactive to January 1,
15 2026, if the person qualified for such credits, or to the
16 date the person would have qualified for enhanced premium tax
17 credits in 2026, whichever is earlier.

18 8. The department shall adopt rules pursuant to chapter 17A
19 to administer this section.>

20 2. Page 2, by striking lines 6 through 10.

21 3. Page 2, after line 12 by inserting:

22 <___. Title page, line 5, after <services,> by inserting
23 <creating the Iowa benefit exchange fund to supplement enhanced
24 premium credits,>>

25 4. Page 2, line 15, by striking <and applicability>

26 5. By renumbering as necessary.

By ZABNER of Johnson
SRINIVAS of Polk

HOUSE FILE 2739

H-8239

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8233, to House File 2739, as follows:
- 2 1. Page 1, by striking lines 20 through 23.
- 3 2. Page 2, by striking lines 6 through 10.
- 4 3. Page 2, line 15, by striking <and applicability>

By SRINIVAS of Polk

H-8239 FILED MARCH 19, 2026

HOUSE FILE 2739

H-8240

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8233, to House File 2739, as follows:
- 2 1. Page 2, after line 3 by inserting:
- 3 <Sec. _____. HEALTH INSURANCE PREMIUM INCREASE —
- 4 PROHIBITION.
- 5 1. Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, a health
- 6 carrier shall not increase the total premiums charged for
- 7 participating in a health benefits plan offered by the health
- 8 carrier for policies, contracts, or plans delivered, issued
- 9 for delivery, continued, or renewed in this state on or after
- 10 January 1, 2027.
- 11 2. This section applies to policies, contracts, or plans
- 12 delivered, issued for delivery, continued, or renewed in this
- 13 state on or after January 1, 2027, but before January 1, 2032.>
- 14 2. Page 2, by striking lines 6 through 10.
- 15 3. Page 2, after line 12 by inserting:
- 16 <____. Title page, line 5, after <services,> by inserting
- 17 limiting amounts charged for health insurance premiums,>>
- 18 4. Page 2, line 15, by striking <and applicability>
- 19 5. By renumbering as necessary.

By SRINIVAS of Polk
COOLING of Linn

H-8240 FILED MARCH 19, 2026

HOUSE FILE 2739

H-8241

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8234, to House File 2739, as follows:
2 1. By striking page 1, line 2, through page 2, line 2, and
3 inserting:
4 <___. By striking page 1, line 1, through page 7, line 31.
5 ___. Page 8, line 12, by striking <division of this>
6 ___. Page 8, by striking lines 14 through 19.
7 ___. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 7 and
8 inserting <An Act making and supplementing appropriations to
9 the department of health and human services, and including
10 effective date provisions.>>
11 2. By renumbering as necessary.

By SRINIVAS of Polk

H-8241 FILED MARCH 19, 2026

HOUSE FILE 2739

H-8242

1 Amend the amendment, H-8234, to House File 2739, as follows:
2 1. Page 1, after line 1 by inserting:
3 <___. Page 2, by striking lines 20 through 30 and inserting:
4 <1. Commencing with the calendar year beginning January
5 1, 2026, and for subsequent calendar years, each health
6 maintenance organization transacting business in this state
7 shall be subject to a health care-related tax payable to
8 the director of revenue in an amount equal to ninety-five
9 hundredths of one percent of the applicable percentage of
10 taxable funds.>
11 ___. Page 3, lines 11 and 12, by striking <current rate in
12 effect> and inserting <rate>
13 ___. Page 3, line 18, by striking <current rate in effect>
14 and inserting <rate>
15 ___. Page 6, by striking lines 18 through 23 and inserting:
16 <Sec. ___. TEMPORARY PROVISIONS FOR THE HEALTH CARE-RELATED
17 TAX AND PREPAYMENTS FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2026. Notwithstanding
18 section 432B.2, subsection 1, if enacted by this division
19 of this Act, each health care maintenance organization
20 transacting business in this state shall be subject to a health
21 care-related tax payable to the director of revenue in an
22 amount equal to three and one-half percent of the applicable
23 percentage of taxable funds as defined in section 432B.1,
24 if enacted by this division of this Act, for the period in
25 calendar year beginning January 1, 2026, and ending September
26 30, 2026. The difference between the amount of taxes collected
27 pursuant to this section and the amount of tax that would be
28 collected by imposing the rate under section 432B.2, subsection
29 1, if enacted by this division of this Act, shall not be
30 subject to prepayment under section 432B.3, subsection 1, if
31 enacted by this division of this Act.>
32 ___. Page 6, lines 24 and 25, by striking <This division of
33 this Act> and inserting <The following>
34 ___. Page 6, line 31, by striking <Act.> and inserting
35 <Act:>

H-8242 (Continued)

1 _____. Page 6, after line 31 by inserting:

2 <The section of this division of this Act enacting the
3 temporary provisions for the health care-related tax and
4 prepayments for calendar year 2026.

5 Sec. _____. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
6 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.>

7 _____. By renumbering as necessary.>

By LUNDGREN of Dubuque

[H-8242](#) FILED MARCH 19, 2026

HOUSE FILE 2739

H-8243

1 Amend the amendment, H-8234, to House File 2739, as follows:
2 1. Page 1, after line 1 by inserting:
3 <___. Page 2, by striking lines 20 through 30 and inserting:
4 <1. Commencing with the calendar year beginning January
5 1, 2026, and for subsequent calendar years, each health
6 maintenance organization transacting business in this state
7 shall be subject to a health care-related tax payable to
8 the director of revenue in an amount equal to ninety-five
9 hundredths of one percent of the applicable percentage of
10 taxable funds.>
11 ___. Page 3, lines 11 and 12, by striking <current rate in
12 effect> and inserting <rate>
13 ___. Page 3, line 18, by striking <current rate in effect>
14 and inserting <rate>
15 ___. Page 6, by striking lines 18 through 23 and inserting:
16 <Sec. ___. TEMPORARY PROVISIONS FOR THE HEALTH CARE-RELATED
17 TAX AND PREPAYMENTS FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2026. Notwithstanding
18 section 432B.2, subsection 1, if enacted by this division
19 of this Act, each health care maintenance organization
20 transacting business in this state shall be subject to a health
21 care-related tax payable to the director of revenue in an
22 amount equal to three and one-half percent of the applicable
23 percentage of taxable funds as defined in section 432B.1,
24 if enacted by this division of this Act, for the period in
25 calendar year beginning January 1, 2026, and ending September
26 30, 2026. The difference between the amount of taxes collected
27 pursuant to this section and the amount of tax that would be
28 collected by imposing the rate under section 432B.2, subsection
29 1, if enacted by this division of this Act, shall not be
30 subject to prepayment under section 432B.3, subsection 1, if
31 enacted by this division of this Act.>
32 ___. Page 6, lines 24 and 25, by striking <This division of
33 this Act> and inserting <The following>
34 ___. Page 6, line 31, by striking <Act.> and inserting
35 <Act:>

1 _____. Page 6, after line 31 by inserting:

2 <The section of this division of this Act enacting the
3 temporary provisions for the health care-related tax and
4 prepayments for calendar year 2026.

5 Sec. _____. EFFECTIVE DATE. Unless otherwise provided, this
6 division of this Act, being deemed of immediate importance,
7 takes effect upon enactment.>>

8 2. Page 1, by striking lines 24 through 31 and inserting:

9 <NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (02) (a) For the fiscal year beginning
10 July 1, 2027, the transfer pursuant to this paragraph shall not
11 exceed fifty percent of the difference between the adjusted
12 revenue estimate, as defined in section 8.54, for the fiscal
13 year and the net general fund appropriation for the fiscal
14 year.

15 (b) For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2028, the transfer
16 pursuant to this paragraph shall not exceed fifty percent
17 of the difference between the adjusted revenue estimate, as
18 defined in section 8.54, for the fiscal year and the net
19 general fund appropriation for the fiscal year.>>

20 3. By renumbering as necessary.

By LUNDGREN of Dubuque

H-8243 FILED MARCH 19, 2026

SENATE FILE 378

H-8245

1 Amend Senate File 378, as passed by the Senate, as follows:

2 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:

3 <Section 1. Section 321.210, subsection 2, paragraph d,
4 Code 2026, is amended to read as follows:

5 *d.* The first two speeding violations within any twelve-month
6 period of that are ten or fewer miles per hour ~~or less~~ over the
7 ~~legal~~ speed limit in a speed zones having zone with a legal
8 speed limit between thirty-four miles per hour and ~~fifty-six~~
9 sixty-one miles per hour.

10 Sec. _____. Section 321.210C, subsection 3, Code 2026, is
11 amended to read as follows:

12 3. For purposes of determining a conviction under this
13 section, the department shall not consider the first two
14 speeding violations within the probation period that are ten
15 or fewer miles per hour ~~or less~~ over the ~~legal~~ speed limit in
16 a speed zones having zone with a legal speed limit between
17 thirty-four miles per hour and ~~fifty-six~~ sixty-one miles per
18 hour.>

19 2. Page 1, line 1, by striking <2025> and inserting <2026>

20 3. Page 1, after line 5 by inserting:

21 <Sec. _____. Section 321A.3, subsection 4, Code 2026, is
22 amended to read as follows:

23 4. The abstract of operating record provided under this
24 section ~~shall~~ that includes a speeding violation must designate
25 which speeding violations occurring whether the violation was
26 ten or fewer miles per hour over the speed limit and occurred
27 under any of the following circumstances:

28 *a.* The violation occurred on or after July 1, 1986, but
29 before May 12, 1987, ~~are for violations of ten miles per hour~~
30 ~~or less over the legal speed limit in a speed zones that have~~
31 zone with a legal speed limit greater than thirty-five miles
32 per hour. ~~For speeding violations occurring~~

33 *b.* The violation occurred on or after May 12, 1987, ~~the~~
34 ~~abstract provided under this section shall designate which~~
35 ~~speeding violations are for ten miles per hour or less over the~~

1 ~~legal speed limit~~ but before July 1, 2026, in a speed zones
2 ~~that have zone with a legal speed limit equal to or greater~~
3 ~~than thirty-five~~ between thirty-four miles per hour but not
4 ~~greater than fifty-five and fifty-six~~ miles per hour.

5 c. The violation occurred on or after July 1, 2026, in a
6 speed zone with a speed limit between thirty-four miles per
7 hour and sixty-one miles per hour.

8 Sec. ____ . Section 516B.3, subsection 1, Code 2026, is
9 amended to read as follows:

10 1. ~~The commissioner shall require that insurance companies~~
11 An insurance company transacting business in this state shall
12 not consider the first two speeding violations occurring
13 that occur in any twelve-month period for the purpose of
14 establishing rates for motor vehicle insurance charged by
15 the insurer or to cancel or refuse to renew any such policy
16 if the speeding violations were ten or fewer miles per hour
17 over the speed limit and occurred under any of the following
18 circumstances:

19 a. The speeding violations occurred on or after July
20 1, 1986, but before May 12, 1987, ~~which are for speeding~~
21 ~~violations for ten miles per hour or less over the legal speed~~
22 ~~limit in a speed zones that have zone with a legal speed limit~~
23 ~~greater than thirty-five miles per hour or speeding violations~~
24 ~~occurring.~~

25 b. The speeding violations occurred on or after May 12,
26 1987, ~~which are for speeding violations for ten miles per hour~~
27 ~~or less over the legal speed limit~~ but before July 1, 2026, in a
28 ~~speed zones that have zone with a legal speed limit equal to or~~
29 ~~greater than thirty-five~~ between thirty-four miles per hour ~~but~~
30 ~~not greater than fifty-five and fifty-six~~ miles per hour ~~for~~
31 ~~the purpose of establishing rates for motor vehicle insurance~~
32 ~~charged by the insurer and shall require that insurance~~
33 ~~companies not cancel or refuse to renew any such policy for~~
34 ~~such violations. In any twelve-month period, this section~~
35 ~~applies only to the first two such violations which occur.~~

H-8245 (Continued)

1 c. The speeding violations occurred on or after July 1,
2 2026, in a speed zone with a speed limit between thirty-four
3 miles per hour and sixty-one miles per hour.>

4 4. Title page, line 1, after <to> by inserting <speed
5 limits, including the speed limit range for which certain
6 excessive speed violations cannot be considered for certain
7 purposes and>

8 5. By renumbering as necessary.

By GOSA of Scott
JONES of Clay

[H-8245](#) FILED MARCH 19, 2026

SENATE FILE 2186

H-8235

1 Amend Senate File 2186, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:

4 <Section 1. Section 35A.14, subsection 1, paragraph b, Code
5 2026, is amended to read as follows:

6 *b.* A nonresident of this state who is or was a member of a
7 national guard unit located in this state, or is or was serving
8 in this state in the reserve forces of the United States prior
9 to alert for mobilization, who has served on active duty at any
10 time after September 11, 2001, who was injured while serving
11 in the national guard unit located in this state or serving
12 in this state in the reserve forces of the United States, who
13 is not eligible to receive a similar grant from another state
14 for that injury, and who, if discharged, was discharged under
15 honorable conditions.>

16 2. Title page, line 1, after <to> by inserting <veterans and
17 active service members, including the injured veterans grant
18 program and>

19 3. By renumbering as necessary.

By COMMITTEE ON VETERANS AFFAIRS
DETERMANN of Clinton, Chairperson

H-8235 FILED MARCH 19, 2026

SENATE FILE 2219

H-8246

1 Amend Senate File 2219, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
4 inserting:

5 <Section 1. Section 256E.7, subsection 2, Code 2026, is
6 amended by adding the following new paragraph:

7 NEW PARAGRAPH. *Or.* Be subject to and comply with the
8 requirements of section 299.1, subsection 5, relating
9 to absences from school because of involvement in a
10 school-sponsored activity, program, competition, or project in
11 the same manner as a school district.

12 Sec. 2. Section 299.1, Code 2026, is amended by adding the
13 following new subsection:

14 NEW SUBSECTION. 5. The board of directors of each public
15 school district and the governing body of each accredited
16 nonpublic school shall adopt a policy that requires the school
17 district or the accredited nonpublic school to grant a student
18 an exempt absence when the student is absent from school
19 because of the student's involvement in a school-sponsored
20 activity, program, competition, or project. The policy shall
21 also require the school district or accredited nonpublic school
22 to allow a student who is absent from school because of the
23 student's involvement in a school-sponsored activity, program,
24 competition, or project to make up any classwork the student
25 was not able to complete as a result of the absence.>

26 2. Title page, by striking lines 4 and 5 and inserting
27 <related to exempting student absences for school-sponsored
28 activities, programs, competitions, and projects.>

By COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION
WHEELER of Sioux, Chairperson

H-8246 FILED MARCH 19, 2026

SENATE FILE 2422

H-8247

1 Amend Senate File 2422, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the Senate, as follows:

- 3 1. By striking page 2, line 27, through page 3, line 3.
4 2. By renumbering as necessary.

By COMMITTEE ON HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES

HARRIS of Appanoose, Chairperson

H-8247 FILED MARCH 19, 2026

SENATE FILE 2448

H-8244

- 1 Amend Senate File 2448, as passed by the Senate, as follows:
- 2 1. Page 1, line 2, by striking <paragraph> and inserting
- 3 <paragraphs>
- 4 2. Page 1, by striking line 6 and inserting <any future
- 5 dues, fees, or assessments which have been formally approved by
- 6 a unit owners association for payment at a future date.>
- 7 3. Page 1, before line 7 by inserting:
- 8 <NEW PARAGRAPH. g. A schedule and disclosure of all fees
- 9 related to the transfer of real property ownership within the
- 10 common interest community.>
- 11 4. Page 1, line 12, by striking <section> and inserting
- 12 <section, including costs associated with developing and
- 13 making available the certification required under subsection
- 14 1, paragraph "f">
- 15 5. Page 1, by striking lines 16 and 17 and inserting <the
- 16 fee charged.>

By NORDMAN of Dallas

H-8244 FILED MARCH 19, 2026